SG4M0903.WS (3)

WG4 SG4/MINUTES/9 MARCH

THESE MINUTES HAVE BEEN ADOPTED BY THE CHAIPERSON. THEY ARE CONFIDENTIAL AND RESTRICTED TO MEMBERS OF THE WORKING GROUP, THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AND THE DAILY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF WORKING GROUP 4 SUBGROUP 4 HELD AT WTC AT 10H00 ON MONDAY 09 MARCH 1992

(ADOPTED AT THE MEETING OF SUBGROUP 4 HELD ON MONDAY 23 MARCH 1992)

PRESENT:

Delegates (see Addendum A)

D Govender (Chairperson)

W Antoine (Minute taker)

### 1. Chairperson's opening remarks

- 1.1 Delegates were welcomed by the chairperson and the meeting was opened with a minute of silent prayer.
- 1.2 <u>It was agreed</u> that future meetings would begin at the scheduled time, whether or not all delegates had arrived.

### Apologies.

The delegate from Ciskei made apology for having to arrive late.

3. Confirmation of Minutes.

The minutes of the second meeting of Subgroup 4 were ratified subject to the following amendments that were agreed upon:

- 3.1 Additional to point 6.1, it was agreed that the minutes of the other Subgroups of Working Group 4 should be circulated to delegates of Subgroup 4 prior to each meeting.
- 3.2 In 4.3 the name Bulani Ngquke should read as Bulelani Ngcuka.
- 3.3 In Addendum A, RS Ramasias should read RS Ramasia, PB Soobrayan as P David and DW Auret as N van Heerden.

#### 4. Agenda

The agenda was adopted after it was agreed to attend to items 5 and 6 before item 4.

- 5. Oral presentations of profile overviews by TBVC states.
  - 5.1 Transkei.

The delegate from the Transkei Government gave a brief summary of the structure of their

government and then considered some specific implications of reincorporation on the various state departments. A document is to be tabled at the next meeting which records the details of this presentation.

### 5.2 Bophuthatswana.

The delegate from the Bophutatswana Government presented a purely factual summary of the structure of government. Reference was made to three documents, two of which have still to be tabled. None of the implications of non-reincorporation were addressed.

In response to a query, the delegate from the Bophutatswana Government <u>agreed</u> to furnish further information with regard to the relative increase of numbers around tribal and municipal authorities.

#### 5.3 Venda.

The delegate from the Venda Government made his oral presentation by reading the profile document that had been submitted to the Subgroup at the previous meeting.

#### 5.4 Ciskei.

Delegates were briefly introduced to the background and structure of the Ciskei Government and were then referred to the relevant pages of the profile document (submitted at the previous meeting) wherein issues for consideration have been identified.

#### 6. Discussion

- 6.1 Delegates expressed their concern that the failure by the delegate from Bophutatswana to address his presentation within the terms of reference would undermine the contribution of the Subgroup and limit its influence in decisions affecting a future South Africa.
- 6.2 <u>It was agreed</u> that item (f) of 1.4 of the Terms of Reference for Subgroup 4 had been formally adopted, even though record of this had been ommitted from the minutes of the first meeting of the Subgroup.
- 6.3 Further, it was agreed that the profile of Bophutatswana should be examined in terms of this item (f) of 1.4.
- 6.4 It was agreed that the TBVC states would make submissions to Subgroup 4, in which the problems and advantages forseen in regard to reincorporation, or otherwise, would be outlined and explored in terms of their political, legal and constitutional implications. Suggestions had to be made as to possible solutions.
- 6.5 <u>It was agreed</u> that these submissions would be made before the next meeting in order that delegates would have time to study the documents prior to the meeting.

### 7. Rapporteurs

- 7.1 The nomination for Mr M.D.B. Rezelman was withdrawn.
- 7.2 The curriculum vitae of Mr B Nqcuka was tabled (see Addendum B).

- 7.3 Delegates discussed what is required of a rapporteur and considered the two remaining nominees, being Mr B Ngcuka and Mr A Ramone, in the light of their discussion.
- 7.4 It was agreed by sufficient concensus to appoint Mr B Ngcuka.

#### 8. Submissions

The following documents were tabled by Transkei:

- 8.1 Relevant Legislation.
- 8.2 Letter X.96. from the Minister of Foreign Affairs and Information

### 9. Future meetings.

- 9.1 Concern was expressed that, for some delegates, more time is spent travelling to meetings than being in the actual meeting. It was agreed that there is a need for meetings to be longer in order to achieve real progress. As previouly agreed, this matter would be referred to the plenary session pending.
- 9.2 The next Subgroup meeting will be held on Monday 23 March 1992 at 10h00 to 16h00.
- 9.3 There will also be a meeting on Tuesday 24 March, 1992 at 10h00. It was decided that this meeting would end at 13h00.

Note: At its meeting held on 09 March 1992 at 14h00, the WGSC 4 decided that given the workload of the Subgroups they should meet on both the 23 and 24 March 1992. It was recommended that the Subgroups should meet until 16h00 on both days.

### 10. Closure

The chairperson closed the meeting at 13h30.

## SG4M0903.WS (3) WG4 SG4/MINUTES/9 MARCH

#### Addendum A

B Mabandla ANC Bophuthatswana Govt JJ Tholoe GF Godden Ciskei Govt NJ Olivier Democratic Party S Manyane Diwankwetla Party VT Zulu Inkatha Freedom Party Intando Yesizwe Party JS Mabena Inyandza National Movement H Motaung J Douw Labour Party PC McKensie National Party NIC/TIC P David S Mufamadi SACP N van Heerden SA Govt GN Naidoo Solidarity Party GW Makhanda Transkei Govt JM Nonyane United People's Ft N Nefale Venda Govt T Shimbambu Ximoko Progressive Party

WG4 SG4/AGENDA/23 MARCH

# DRAFT AGENDA FOR THE MEETING OF WORK GROUP 4 SUBGROUP 4 TO BE HELD AT WTC AT 10H00 ON MONDAY 23 MARCH

- 1. Opening by Chairperson
- 2. Adoption of Minutes
- 3. Adoption of Agenda
- 4. Presentation of submissions by TBVC states
- 5. Discussion
- 6. Draft agenda for next meeting of Subgroup 4
- 7. Any other business
- 8. Closure

### SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS

- 1. Monday 23 March 1992 : WG 4 Sub-group 2 at 10h00 to 16h00
- Monday 23 March 1992 : WG 4 Sub-group 3 at 10h00 to 16h00
- 3. Monday 23 March 1992 : WG 4 Sub-group 4 at 10h00 to 16h00
- 4. Tuesday 24 March 1992: WG 4 Sub-group 1 and Sub-group 2 to have a joint meeting from 09h30 to 16h00
- 5. Tuesday 24 March 1992 : WG 4 Sub-group 3 at 09h30 to 16h00
- 6. Tuesday 24 March 1992 : WG 4 Sub-group 4 at 09h30 to 16h00
- 7. Tuesday 24 March 1992 : WGSC 4 at 16h30 to 17h00
- 8. Tuesday 24 March 1992 : WGSC 4 and WGSC 3 to meet at 17h00
- 9. Monday 30 March 1992 : WG 4 at 10h00 to 13h00

THESE ARE DRAFT MINUTES. THEY ARE CONFIDENTIAL AND RESTRICTED TO THE MEMBERS OF THE SUB GROUP, THE WORKING GROUP, THE DAILY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AND THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. THEY ARE STILL SUBJECT TO RATIFICATION BY THE SUB GROUP AT ITS NEXT MEETING.

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE FOURTH MEETING OF SUB GROUP 1 (TESTING THE WILL OF THE PEOPLE) OF WORKING GROUP 4 (THE FUTURE OF THE TBVC STATES) HELD AT THE WORLD TRADE CENTRE ON MONDAY 9 MARCH 1992 AT 09H30

PRESENT:

Delegates (see Addendum A)

EK Moorcroft (chair)

M Durrheim (minutes)

1. Apologies

N Nogcantsi

B-Anderson

The abovementioned delegates were absent for the first half of the morning.

Chairperson's opening remarks

Delegates were welcomed by the chairperson and the meeting was opened with prayer.

Agenda

The agenda for the meeting was adopted.

4. Confirmation of minutes of meeting held on 2 March 1992

The minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 1992 will be amended as follows:

- 4.1 Point 6 will be amended to read as follows:

  It was agreed that sub group 1 would submit to working group 4 that the management committee of Codesa set up an independent and objective broadcasting facility, perhaps called "Voice of Codesa". Broadcasting would be via all electronic media (TV, radio etc) at prime time. "Voice of Codesa" would broadcast directly from Codesa after the usual weekly press conference, so that it is seen to be objective and independent. The spokesperson would be the chair of the management committee.
- The fourth paragraph of point 7.2.1 will be amended to read as follows:

  It was agreed that the will of the people needs to be tested as soon as possible. In order to ascertain at what stage the referendum should take place it was felt necessary to liaise with working groups 2 and 3. It was agreed to suggest to working group 4 that a sub-committee be formed to liaise between these three working groups.

- Point 7.2.4 will be amended to read as follows:

  The role of Codesa in the referendum was discussed. It was agreed that in South Africa the referendum should be Codesa-driven. With respect to the TBVC states it was agreed that the referendum should be Codesa-driven, with the co-operation of the states involved. The Bophuthatswana government recorded its objection to any role being played by Codesa in Bophuthatswana.
- Point 7.2.5 will be amended to read as follows:

  Concern was expressed about the capacity of Codesa to play the kind of role the sub group envisaged for it unless its financial position could be improved. It was felt that Codesa should be bolstered by the international community and allowed to raise funds. It was felt that this problem should be drawn to the attention of working groups 2 and 3.
- 4.5 The minutes were adopted together with the above amendments.

### 5. Matters arising

5.1 Election of a Rapporteur

The National Party stated that, in view of the important progress sub group 1 has made, in the spirit of co-operation that the respective delegations have established at Codesa thus far, and in the belief that this spirit of co-operation can be extended to all delegations when needed in future, the National Party was prepared to withdraw its nomination for a rapporteur. The National Party appealed to the SACP to withdraw their nomination for a rapporteur and agree that the chairperson of sub group 1 should continue to report back to working group 4. The SACP agreed to this proposal.

It was agreed that the chairperson of sub group 1 will report back to working group 4 and liaise with the two rapporteurs appointed by working group 4 in the drawing up of the report for Codesa 2.

5.2 Strategies for information

Delegates were informed that the steering committee of working group 4 had requested that the sub group include this request in its report to working group 4.

5.3 Liaison with working groups 2 and 3

Delegates were informed that the steering committee of working group 4 had suggested that sub group 1 include the request for liaison between sub group 1 and working groups 2 and 3 in its report to working group 4.

### 6. Review of progress made

- 6.1 The chairperson presented a "Summary of Proceedings" (Addendum B).
  - 6.1.1 During the ensuing discussion it was agreed that with regard to eligibility of voters sub group 1 is unable to make a recommendation until it has heard the recommendations of sub group 2 of working group 4 and working groups 2 and 3.
  - 6.1.2 It was agreed that the Summary of Proceedings be adopted by the sub group and

### included in the minutes (Addendum B).

6.2 <u>Delegates agreed</u> upon the wording of a document headed "Final Summary of Proceedings" which will be included in the minutes (Addendum C) and presented to working group 4.

### 7. Votes of thanks

All delegates thanked the chairperson for the role he had played in facilitating the working of sub group 1. The chairperson also thanked the delegates for the positive spirit of co-operation evident during proceedings.

### 8. Date of next meeting

It was agreed not to set a date for the next meeting of sub group 1 until there has been liaison with the other sub groups and working groups referred to above.

Note: At a steering committee meeting held at 16h00 on Monday 9 March it was decided that all delegates of sub group 1 should meet together with all delegates of sub group 2 (Citizenship) of working group 4. This meeting will take place at the World Trade Centre on Tuesday 24 March from 09h30 to 16h00.

### 9. Closure of meeting

The meeting was closed at 12h50.

### ADDENDUM A

The following persons attended the meeting of sub group 1 of working group 4 on Monday 9 March 1992.

Organisation Delegate

ANC M Phosa

Bohputatswana SS Seane

Ciskei Government N Nogcantsi

Democratic Party EK Moorcroft

Dikwankwetla Party MC Noge

Inkatha B Anderson

Intando Yesizwe Party M Mahlangu

Inyandza National Movement J Matsana

Labour Party of SA W Whyte

National Party PJ Farrell

N P P RC Panday

NIC J Yawitch

SACP S Ngonyama

SA Government AT Meyer

Solidarity Party Y Seedat

Transkei Government LM Bengu

UPF NM Malekane

Venda Government RR Sumbana

Ximoko Party C Khosa

ADDENDUM B

# PRELIMINARY SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS OF SUB GROUP 1 (TESTING THE WILL OF THE PEOPLE) OF WORKING GROUP 4 (THE FUTURE OF THE TBVC STATES)

- Sub group 1 approached its brief in the following way:
  first it dealt in broad general terms with points 1.1 to 1.3 of its terms of reference, which include the investigation of the relationships between the TBVC states and South Africa under a new South African constitution. In particular it sought to identify key issues and problems, as well as areas of commonality between participating delegates. Two key issues were identified. These are:
  - 1.1 Is it desirable to support the re-incorporation of the TBVC states into a new South Africa? and
  - 1.2 Is it desirable to test the will of the people regarding re-incorporation?
- The question of testing the will of the people forms part of the specific brief of sub group 1.
  - 2.1 As a consequence of debate, together with perusal of written submissions, the following areas of commonality have been identified:
    - 2.1.1 All delegates, with the exception of Bophuthatswana, have no objection to reincorporation. Bophuthatswana is still considering constitutional options.
    - All delegates, with the exception of Bophuthatswana, <u>agree</u> that the people themselves should have a deciding vote in this matter, i.e. the will of the people must be tested. Bophuthatswana has expressed the view that such a decision should be the responsibility of the Bophuthatswana government.
- 3. There was broad agreement between those delegates who supported the concept of "testing the will of the people" that the best way of testing this will would be by means of a referendum. The SACP stated that whereas its attitude was that restoration of citizenship by the SA government was desirable, it was nonetheless not averse to a referendum.
- 4. All delegates agreed that the referendum should not be held on the basis of race or ethnicity.
- 5. There was also general agreement (with the exception of Inkatha) that the referendum should be held on a nation-wide basis i.e. that separate referenda should not be held in each TBVC state independent from the rest of the RSA.
- Two key issues were identified. These were:
  - 6.1 The question to be asked in the referendum, and
  - 6.2 The timing of the referendum.
- Central to these two issues will be the recommendations made by sub group 2 regarding the constitutional

future of the RSA. It was agreed that when these recommendations are put to the people of South Africa for their approval, then they should be put to the people of the TBVC states also.

- 7.1 The Bophuthatswana government recorded its position i.e. that if the Bophuthatswana government decides that it is necessary to test the will of the people, the ensuing referendum would be conducted by the Bophuthatswana government.
- It would then follow that rejection of the recommendations by the people of any one or more of the TBVC states would also indicate rejection of the idea of re-incorporation by that state or states.
- It was agreed that if the will of the people in the TBVC states is to be tested, then it will be necessary to
  count the votes of the people in those states separately from those of people in the rest of the RSA.
  - 9.1 The ANC, SACP, and NIC/TIC placed on record that they would not accept a referendum in which separate counting was done on the basis of race or ethnicity.
- With regard to the timing of the referendum, it was agreed that the will of the people in the TBVC states should be tested as soon as possible.
  - 10.1 It was felt strongly by the ANC, SACP and NIC/TIC that all the people of the TBVC states should be given the opportunity to participate in the transitional arrangements and in the drawing up of the new constitution.
- 11. It became clear that a difficulty existed between those who believe that re-incorporation should take place sooner in order that the people of the TBVC states should be able to participate more fully and those who believe that re-incorporation should take place later so that the people will not be called upon to "take a step in the dark" i.e. they should first know what it is that Codesa has decided.
- 12. It was pointed out that the difficulty was rooted in the problem of co-ordinating the proceedings of working groups 2, 3 and 4.
- The NIC/TIC, ANC and SACP placed on record their position that re-incorporation of the TBVC states should be by means of a unilateral act by the South African government.
- 14. The eligibility of voters was discussed i.e. who would be eligible to vote in the TBVC states. Would it be citizens only, or would residents also be included?
  - 14.1 Bophuthatswana made it clear that only those in possession of Bophuthatswana citizenship would be allowed to vote, although it was stressed that this citizenship was open to all who resided within the boundaries of that state.
  - 14.2 It was agreed that with regard to eligibility of voters sub group 1 is unable to make a recommendation until it has heard the recommendations of sub group 2 of working group 4 and working groups 2 and 3.
- 15. There was strong agreement that the referendum should be Codesa-driven.
  - With regard to the TBVC states, it was agreed that the referendum should be supervised by Codesa provided that this was done in co-operation with the administrations of the respective states.

- 15.2 The Bophuthatswana government recorded its objections to any role being played by Codesa in Bophuthatswana.
- 15.3 Concern was expressed that unless Codesa's financial capacity was increased, it would not be able to play the kind of role envisioned for it.
- 15.4 It was agreed that the possibility of Codesa recruiting international funding be pursued.
- 16. It was agreed that if the people of the TBVC states were to be kept fully informed of the proceedings of Codesa, then full use should be made of all electronic media, (TV, radio etc). It was suggested that a "Voice of Codesa" be created which would broadcast directly from Codesa after the usual weekly press conference. The spokesperson would be the chair of the management committee. The reports would then be seen to fair, free and objective.

ADDENDUM C

FINAL SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS OF SUB GROUP 1 (TESTING THE WILL OF THE PEOPLE) OF WORKING GROUP 4 (THE FUTURE OF THE TBVC STATES)

With the exception of Bophuthatswana, which expressed certain reservations, sufficient consensus has been reached on the following points related to our terms of reference:

- a) That the will of the people in the TBVC states be tested.
- b) That such a test be done concurrently with the rest of South Africa and that race or ethnicity should play no role in the process.
- c) That testing be done by way of a referendum.
- d) That the question asked be related to the constitutional recommendations/proposals made by Codesa.
- e) With regard to the eligibility of voters this sub group is unable to make recommendations until it has heard the recommendations of sub group 2 of working group 4 and working groups 2 and 3.
- f) That the referendum should be driven by Codesa in co-operation with the administrations of the respective states.
- g) That a 'Voice of Codesa' be established.

The following additional points are for noting:

- i) That the referendum take place as soon as is practically possible (pending 'd' above).
- ii) That a liaison committee be established in order to co-ordinate the further proceedings of Working Groups 2, 3 and 4.

THESE ARE DRAFT MINUTES, AS APPROVED BY THE CHAIRPERSON. THEY ARE CONFIDENTIAL AND RESTRICTED TO MEMBERS OF THE WORKING GROUP SUB-GROUP 2, THE WORKING GROUP, THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AND THE DAILY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. THEY ARE STILL SUBJECT TO RATIFICATION BY THE WORKING GROUP SUB-GROUP 2 AT ITS NEXT MEETING.

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE FOURTH MEETING OF SUB-GROUP TWO (CITIZENSHIP) OF WORKING GROUP 4 (FUTURE OF THE TBVC STATES) HELD AT THE WORLD TRADE CENTRE ON MONDAY 9 MARCH 1992 AT 10h00

PRESENT: Delegates (See Addendum A)

CTD Marivate (chair)

J Steinberg (minutes)

APOLOGIES: none

### 1. Role call

All delegates were present and noted with the exceptions of B. Keikelame (Bophuthatswana Government), JA Jordaan (Democratic Party) and MT Khosa (Ximoko Progressive Party).

### Confirmation of Agenda

The agenda was confirmed with an additional discussion on administration.

### Opening remarks of the chairperson

The delegates were welcomed by the chairperson. The chairperson appealed for progress and harmonious resolution.

#### 4. Minutes

The minutes of sub-group 2 meeting of 2 March 1992 were adopted with typographical changes.

### 5. Nominating a rapporteur

- 5.1 The National Party withdrew its nomination of Marius Rezelman for the position of rapporteur. Geoff Budlender was thereby <u>automatically confirmed</u> as rapporteur for subgroup 2 of WG 4.
- 6. Proposed alteration to the wording of point 8. in the

### minutes of the meeting of sub-group 2, 2 March 1992.

- 6.1 The South African government proposed that the wording of point 8 in the minutes of the meeting of sub-group 2, 2 March 1992 be ammended. The clause reads "Sub-group 2 of working group 4 has reached sufficient consensus that South African citizenship be restored. In this regard there are two views:" The South African government proposed that the clause be changed to read as follows: "Sub-group 2 of working group 4 has reached sufficient consensus that South African citizenship be restored and that in this regard there are two views:" The SA government's motivation was that putting the statement into one clause would reduce the possibility that it would be quoted in such a manner that its intended meaning would become obscured.
- 6.2 The meeting <u>resolved</u> that the wording in the minutes would remain unchanged since it accurately represented the consensus reached on 2 March.

### 8. Citizenship

- 8.1 Sub-group 2 of WG 4 <u>reached consensus</u> on the principle that South African citizenship be restored.
- 8.2 It was agreed that the question of subjecting the restoration of citizenship to the will of the people be referred to sub-group 1 of WG 4.
- 8.3 It was further agreed that the question of the mechanics, time span and implementation of the restoration of citizenship be referred to WG 5.

### 9. The distribution of minutes and agendas

9.1 Delegates again raised the objection that the timespan between their acquisition of minutes and agendas and the commencement of meetings was inadequate vis a vis embarking on sufficient processes of consultion.

### 10. Further Meetings

The next meeting of sub-group 2 of WG 4 will be held on Monday 23 March 1992 at the World Trade Centre at 10h00.

### 11. Closure

The meeting was closed at 13h05.

### SBG2MIN0209.WS SUBGRP2/WG4/MINUTES/9 MARCH

### Addendum A

party/Organisation

ANC

Ciskei Government

Dikwankwetla Party

Inkatha Freedom Party

Intando Yesizwe Party

Inyandza National Movement

Labour Party

National Party

NPP

NIC/TIC

SACP

SA Government

Solidarity Party

Transkei Government

UPF

Venda Government

Delegate

D Omar

RB Tokota

SP Matla

FT Mdlalose

WMB Mohapi

D Makhubela

s Verveen

JHL Mentz

S Naidoo

NG Patel

T Mtintso

RS Schoeman (subs: CC Prins)

MF Cassim

SHL Matabese

LM Mokoena

SR Makhuvha

SUBGROUP3/NG4/MINUTES/9 MARCH

THESE ARE DRAFT MINUTES, AS APPROVED BY THE CHAIRPERSON. THEY ARE CONFIDENTIAL AND RESTRICTED TO THE MEMBERS OF SUBGROUP 3, THE WORKING GROUP STEERING COMMITTEE, THE DAILY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AND THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE. THEY ARE STILL SUBJECT TO RATIFICATION BY THE SUBGROUP AT ITS NEXT MEETING.

MINUTES OF THE FOURTH MEETING OF SUBGROUP 3 (THE ADMINISTRATIVE, FINANCIAL AND PRACTICAL EFFECTS OF REINCORPORATION OF THE TBVC STATES) HELD AT THE WORLD TRADE CENTRE ON MONDAY, MARCH 9, 1992.

PRESENT

Delegates

(see Addendum A)

C Simkins

(Chairperson)

WJ Viljoen

(Minutes)

Chairperson's opening remarks and adoption of the draft agenda.

The delegates were welcomed by the Chairperson and the draft agenda was adopted.

2. Ratification of minutes of the meeting of Subgroup 3 held on March 2, 1992.

The minutes of the third meeting of Subgroup 3 were ratified subject to the following amendments that were agreed upon:

- 2.1. 4.1.1. The correct amount is R416 668 000.
- 2.2. Altered to include "(9 Annual Reports were tabled by the Bophuthatswana Government. After discussion they were retrieved for summary.)"
- 2.3. 5.1. The date in the last line corrected to read "24 and 25 February 1992.)
- 2.4. Insert "9.12. Annual Reports: List to be annexed to the minutes."
- Progress on assembling material identified in the minutes of Subgroup 3 meeting held on February 18, 1992.
  - 3.1. SA Government

6 Documents were tabled by the SA Government. See "11: Information received"

- 3.2. TBVC Governments
  - 3.2.1. Transkei Government

2 Documents were tabled. See "11: Information received"

3.2.2. Bophuthatswana Government

3 Documents were tabled. See "11: Information received"

### 3.2.3. Venda Government

8 Documents were tabled. See "11: Information received"

### 3.2.4. Ciskei Government

No information has to date be received from the Ciskei Government.

It was noted that this is severly hampering the progress of Sub-group 3. The delegate from the Ciskei Government will be asked to explain the attitude of the Ciskei Government at the next meeting of Sub-group 3.

### 3.3. The Development Bank of SA

It was reported that the DBSA had confirmed that it was making substantial progress in compiling the information requested.

### 4. Land transfer moratorium

4.1. Reports from Venda and the Ciskei.

Information was tabled by the SA and Venda Governments. The Ciskei representative handed a document to the Chairperson of Sub-group 3 during the meeting of Working Group 4. This document is attached to the minutes.

### 4.2. Debate

It was agreed that debate will be postponed till the next meeting.

It was stated that the Transkei Government and the Venda Government would like to review the document circulated by the SA Government for reconciliation with their own information.

### 5. Appointment of Rapporteur

At a brief caucus of Sub-group 3 during the meeting of Working Group 4 it was agreed that Mr M Memela be appointed as rapporteur for Subgroup 3.

### 6. Other business

6.1. Participation of Advisors in Working Group 4 plenary sessions.

It was agreed that a proposal be made to the Working Group 4 Steering Committee requesting that advisors be given speaking rights on matters specifically concerning their subgroup and that advisor's speaking rights be guided by the heads of delegations.

6.2. Procedure with collected information.

It was agreed that the minute taker proceed with the collating and registration of information received to date.

- 7. The meeting adjourned at 12:00 till after the Working Group 4 meeting.
- The meeting reconvened at 15:45.
- 9. Date of the next meeting.

The meetings schedule for Subgroup 3 are as follows:

Monday, March 23, 1992: 10:00 - 16:00 Tuesday, March 24, 1992: 10:00 - 16:00.

- 10. Submissions
  - 10.1. Submission by the Ciskei Government on the Land Transfer Moratorium: Addendum C.
- 11. Information received

Information received from the SA Government

- 11.1. Document headed "Land still to be transferred to the TBVC States in terms of bilateral and independence agreements."
  - 11.1.1. Pending (trust owned land) transfers to TBVC states.
  - 11.1.2. Land still to be acquired by the RSA for addition to the TBVC states in terms of bilateral and independence agreements.
  - 11.1.3. Funds

Note the amount allocated for the 1991/92 financial year is R15 199 000.

- 11.1.4. Transfer of land from the TBVC states.
- 11.1.5. Institutions.
- 11.2. Document headed "B.3 Taxation"
- 11.3. Document headed "B.3 Taxation including Custom and Excise.
- 11.4. Document headed "B.4 Development Projects and Priorities:
  - 11.4.1. Transkei
  - 11.4.2. Bophuthatswana
  - 11.4.3. Venda
  - 11.4.4. Ciskei

- 11.5. Document headed "Abstract of the 1991/92 Estimates of Expenditure of each TBVC State together with the summary of Capital Expenditure."
- 11.6. Document headed "Status of RSA Pension Fund"

### Information received from the Transkei Government.

- 11.7. Document headed "Manual on the implementation of the Regional Industrial Development Incentives introduced on 1 April 1982."
- 11.8. Document concerning Transkei Education Department Data and Pupil/Teacher Ratio's.

### Information received from the Bophuthatswana Government

- 11.9. Bophuthatswana Boundary Proclamation Map.
- 11.10. Document headed "Comparative Indicators"
- 11.11. Document headed "Bophuthatswana Submission to Working Group 4, Subgroup 3"

(Explanatory document to 11.10.)

### Information received from the Venda Government

- 11.12. Document headed "Venda's view on Reincorporation"
- 11.13. Document headed "Submission to Working Group 4 Subgroup 3 of CODESA on development projects, their status and the list of infrastructure of the Government and parastatal institutions."
- 11.14. Document headed "Venda Development Corporation Ltd. Annual Report 1989."
- 11.15. Document headed "Venda Development Corporation Ltd. Annual Report 1990."
- 11.16. Document headed "Venda Agricultural Corporation Ltd. (AGRIVEN) Annual Report 1988/89.
- 11.17. Document headed "Venda Electricity Corporation. Five year plan and tariff Study 1992-1997."
- 11.18. Document headed "Agriven Ltd: Project Implementation costs incurred."
- Document headed "Venda Electricity Corporation: Report on Capital Budget for the 9 months ended 31.12.91."

### 12. Adjournment

The meeting closed at 16:00.

Addendum A
Working Group 4, Subgroup 3
Attendance

ANC	A NZO
Bophuthatswana Government	DW Schoeman
Ciskei Government	
Democratic Party	C Simkins
Dikwankwetla Party	DA Theyane
Inkatha Freedom Party	NJ Ngubane
Intando Yesizwe Party	JL Mahlangu
Inyandza National Movement	D Mokoena
Labour Party	J Douw
National Party	R Radue
National Peoples Party	L Dwarkapersad
NIC/TIC	s Singh
SACP	L Nyembe
SA Government	R Burton
Solidarity Party	D Bagwandeen
Transkei Government	M Titus
UPF	ER Maponye
Venda Government	SE Moeti

Ximoko Progressive Party TW Tshabala